
Mark Saccoccio 
Town Clerk 

  01525 631920
   info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD

6 JULY 2018

To:  Members of the Community Safety Sub Committee (Councillors C Chambers, 
A Dodwell, T Morris, C Perham, G Perham, R Berry, B Spurr and D Bowater)
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information)

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Community Safety Sub Committee 
to be held on Monday, 16 July 2018 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, 
The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, 
Beds, LU7 1HD. 

M Saccoccio 
Town Clerk

AGENDA

1.  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

2.  APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 

3.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk.

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required 
to declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of 
it. 

(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted 
by the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

5.  QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 
MINUTES) 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED *

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


COMMUNITY SAFETY SUB COMMITTEE Monday, 16 July 2018

To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 1(f) and 1(h).

6.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4)

To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Police Liaison 
Sub-Committee meeting held on 9 April 2018 (attached).

7.  BEDFORDSHIRE POLICE (Pages 5 - 18)

(a) To receive an update report from Bedfordshire Police in respect of 
Operation Dodford, crime and antisocial behaviour (to follow). 

(b) To consider the arrangements for Operation Dodford and to consider 
any recommendations to Policy & Finance Committee for 2018-2019

8.  CCTV & RE-DEPLOYABLE CAMERAS (Pages 19 - 22)

(a) To receive and consider a report to seek Member endorsement in 
respects of CCTV Airtime and Warranty Renewal.

(b) To receive the quarterly CCTV monitoring report from Central 
Bedfordshire Council. 

9.  WATCH SCHEMES UPDATES 

To receive a verbal update in respect of the various “Watch” schemes within 
the Parish.

10.  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

The Sub-Committee may consider it appropriate to consider the following 
resolution should they consider that any discussion would be prejudicial to the 
public interests: that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 
1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature of the 
business about to be transacted which involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information. The public and press to withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of detailed discussion regarding:  Operational Policing (if 
applicable)

11.  OPERATIONAL POLICING 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control.



Page 35

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

POLICE LIAISON SUB-COMMITTEE

MONDAY 9 APRIL 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present    : Councillors R Berry 
A Dodwell
J M Freeman
T Morris – in the Chair

                                          A Brandham (substituting for C Chambers)
C Palmer (substituting for B Spurr)
C Perham
G Perham

                      Also in attendance:     M Saccocio, Town Clerk
S Sandiford (Head of Democratic & Central 
Services)
S Jewell (Best Bar None Co-ordinator)
Inspector C Gurr (Bedfordshire Police)
PCSO E Weedon (Bedfordshire Police)
Sgt L Mitchell (Bedfordshire Police)

           Members of the Public: 10

087/PL APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor C Chambers 
(substituted by Councillor A Brandham) and from Councillor B Spurr (substituted 
by Councillor C Palmer). 

088/PL DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.  
No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested. 

089/PL PUBLIC QUESTIONS

Members of the public and representatives of the local Shop Watch and Pub 
Watch schemes spoke to express concerns about local crime and the lack of 
police resources available to attend incidents, either at the time of the event or 
thereafter to take statements. Concerns were expressed about the finite police 
resources in the local area, particularly overnight, and the difficulty of being able 
to make reports to the police via the non emergency 101 number but also the 
emergency 999 number.  

A concern regarding an increase in knife crime was raised and this was agreed 
by Bedfordshire Police officers to be the case, both across the county and at a 
national level.

Shop Watch representatives raised a concern that the analogue radios used for 
flagging up issues to the CCTV control room might not be useable in future, 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Police Liaison Sub-Committee 9 April 2018    
                                                                                                                                                                         

Page 32

should Central Bedfordshire Council proceed with a move to a digital CCTV 
system. It was agreed to seek clarification from Central Bedfordshire Council on 
this, but understood that the timescale for any changes to the CCTV system was 
medium term and unlikely to take place within the next couple of years.  

Shop Watch representatives requested whether Bedfordshire Police officers 
could attend their next scheduled meeting. It was agreed that officers would 
attend if at all possible given operational constraints. 

A query was raised regarding the £40,000 annual budget set by the Town 
Council for community safety. This had historically been predominantly delivered 
through the Operation Dodford service level agreement with Bedfordshire Police 
and included a focus on market day patrols, when the town centre had been at 
its busiest. The question was asked as to whether funds were being used in the 
most effective manner. 

090/PL MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the Police Liaison Sub-
Committee meeting held on 8 January 2018. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Police Liaison Sub-Committee meeting 
held on 8 January 2018 be approved as a correct record and signed 
accordingly.

091/PL BEST BAR NONE

The Best Bar None Co-Ordinator for Leighton-Linslade, Dunstable and 
Houghton Regis attended the meeting to provide a verbal update in respect of 
the scheme, which aimed to work with licensed premises to implement best 
practice initiatives and enhance safety for customers. Ten venues in the parish 
had achieved accreditation and the next step was the “People’s Vote”, which 
would be publicised via a number of mechanisms including social media. A 
presentation evening would be taking place on 4 June. 

It was noted that there was a healthy Pub Watch scheme running in Leighton 
Buzzard and Linslade and that although this was run on an entirely separate and 
independent basis, it was intrinsically linked with the Best Bar None project and 
the Best Bar None Co-ordinator was invited to attend Pub Watch meetings. 

092/PL BEDFORDSHIRE POLICE REPORT: OPERATION DODFORD

The Sub-Committee received a report from Bedfordshire Police on crime and 
antisocial behaviour for January - March 2018, as compared to the previous year 
and as a ratio per head of population compared with other local towns.  For both 
crimes and antisocial behaviour incidents, there were increases in some 
categories but reductions in others, compared to the same period in 2017. 
Incidents of note relating to market day patrols and the night time economy were 
highlighted. 

Page 2



Police Liaison Sub-Committee 9 April 2018    
                                                                                                                                                                         

Page 33

Clarification was given that although community safety teams were not in 
operation after 10pm, police response teams were operational throughout the 
night and would be assigned jobs by the police control room based on their 
assessment of potential risk or harm. 

Committee members raised queries regarding specific locations of concern for 
antisocial behaviour. An “Operation Vision” exercise had recently taken place in 
the south of the town and it was hoped that this could be repeated later in the 
year. “Operation Night Owl” had been established since January 2018 to provide 
a dedicated response to the night time economy, with one van covering 
Leighton-Linslade, Dunstable and Luton. 

It was noted that residents often expressed concerns or frustrations on social 
media but did not actually report these matters officially to the police. Police 
officers reminded those present that reports could also be submitted online as 
well as via the 101 telephone number. 

Concerns were expressed regarding drugs issues, with various paraphernalia 
being uncovered during recent litter picking activity. Drugs had been set as a 
local priority and the police confirmed this meant that more resources could be 
dedicated to it, with intelligence officers targeting the most serious offences 
(relating to class A drugs) as first priority. 

Further concerns were expressed in relation to ongoing antisocial behaviour by 
young people in the town centre. Feedback from residents indicated that people 
felt intimidated and unsafe and might therefore be deterred from visiting the town 
centre. It was confirmed that a lot of work continued to be done in respect of 
these issues, including gathering of evidence in order to progress through the 
system by way of issuing “acceptable behaviour contracts”, warnings and 
ultimately injunctions to ban known offenders from specific locations. It was 
further confirmed that much pro-active work was being done with young people 
including liaison with schools and parents. 

RESOLVED to note the information.

A new Service Level Agreement for Operation Dodford for 2018-19 had yet to 
be received and was currently under consideration by Bedfordshire Police 
following recent case law. The Sub-Committee was therefore unable to make 
any specific recommendation to the Policy and Finance Committee in this 
respect. It was instead agreed that Insp.Gurr would consider whether there were 
any areas in which the Town Council could help to financially support 
Bedfordshire Police in preventing or addressing local crime and antisocial 
behaviour issues and if so, to discuss these further with the Town Clerk. 

093/PL “WATCH” SCHEMES UPDATE

The Sub-Committee received a report in respect of the local Street Watch and 
Speed Watch schemes, including patrols undertaken. Feedback to scheme 
members from local residents was positive.  

RESOLVED to note the report.   

Page 3



Police Liaison Sub-Committee 9 April 2018    
                                                                                                                                                                         

Page 34

094/PL CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION

The Sub-Committee received a report of recorded CCTV incidents in Leighton 
Buzzard from 1 January – 31 March 2018. It was noted that the number of 
arrests stated in the report was based solely on the information captured by the 
CCTV and did not reflect any action taken by the police following the captured 
incidents or where the incidents formed part of a wider investigation. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

The meeting closed at 20:57 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 9 APRIL 2018.

Chair  16 JULY 2018 

Page 4



Community Safety Sub Committee

Date:  16 July 2018

Title: Operation Dodford Framework 
Agreement 

Purpose of the Report: To seek Member Endorsement in 
Respects of entering into a new 
Operation Dodford Framework 
Agreement for the Financial Year 
2018/19. 

Contact Officer: Mark Saccoccio, Town Clerk 

Corporate Objective/s To promote and develop a vibrant town through 
partnership working and initiatives including 
management of the street market, provision of 
town and community promotions, town centre 
enhancements, tourism and practical support for 
local businesses.

Implications:
Financial √ None- The Agreement would 

provide the mechanism in 
which the town council can 
prioritise future policing 
requirements.  

Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery

√ The Chair of Community 
Safety in conjunction with the 
Town Clerk have delegated 
powers to direct the police to 
town council priority areas. 

Procedural/Legal √ The Agreement accords with 
Section 92 of the Police Act 
1996.  

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

Should members be minded, the proposal is::

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 
1.1 That the Town Council enters into a new Framework Agreement with 

Bedfordshire Police for the financial year 2018-19. 

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 As Members are minded, the Town Council has in place a Framework 
Agreement with Bedfordshire Police. The Framework Agreement provides the 
mechanism that allows for targeted police services to be provided at the behest 
of the Town Council. As the client, the Town Council can instruct Bedfordshire 
Police to provide policing for its activities that may not otherwise be covered by 
“normal” policing as they are not considered an operational priority. For 
example, the twice weekly market and town events are policed by way of this 
agreement.  

2.2 Whilst there has been much conjecture surrounding the merits or otherwise of 
paying for policing, the purpose of this report is not to discuss this. The purpose 
of this report is to consider the merits or otherwise in having in place an 
agreement with the police that allows:-

i) The attendance of the Police at Community Safety meetings.
ii) To provide the mechanism that allows the police to share operational 

information with elected Members of the Council.
iii) The ability to challenge the Police in a structured meeting 

environment.
iv) The ability to target policing toward town council priority activities 

(which may not be considered a policing priority when compared to 
other competing policing priorities). 

2.3 Without this, the Town Council would have little influence over policing activity 
within the parish.  

 End. 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Community Safety Sub Committee

Date:  16 July 2018

Title:  Re-deployable Cameras

Purpose of the Report: To seek Member Endorsement in 
Respects of CCTV Airtime and Warranty 
Renewal 

Contact Officer: Mark Saccoccio, Town Clerk 

Corporate Objective/s To promote and develop a vibrant town through 
partnership working and initiatives including 
management of the street market, provision of 
town and community promotions, town centre 
enhancements, tourism and practical support for 
local businesses.

Implications:
Financial √ To be met in part from 

Community Safety Earmarked 
Reserves (£3,000) and from 
the Community Safety Budget 
(£40,000). 

Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery

√ A failure to renew either offers 
potential risk to the council.

Procedural/Legal √ Whilst the Town Council has 
no statutory public protection 
duty, it is presently committed 
to community safety by way of 
Operation Dodford and cctv 
agreements.  

Risk/Health and Safety √

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

Should members be minded, the proposals are:

1.1 To renew the air time contract for 2 years at a cost of £4,800 which is to 
be met from Community Safety Earmarked Reserves (£3,000) and 
Community Safety Budget (£40,000). 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



 

1.2 To renew the warranty agreement for a further 2 years at a cost of 
£1,358.00 which is to be met from the Community Safety Budget (£40,000). 

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 At its meeting held 1st August 2016, Policy and Finance Committee agreed to 
the purchase of 2 number re-deployable cctv cameras. Since this resolution, 2 
cameras have been purchased and are presently operating within the parish. 

2.2 The one-off capital cost of £11,880 for their purchase was met from Earmarked 
Reserves with an understanding that £2,600 would be identified from within the 
Community Safety Budget to help meet running costs (warranty and air time). 

2.3  On 20th March 2018, the Town Council received email correspondence from 
the suppliers in respects of future warranty and airtime arrangements once the 
supplier’s 2-year cover expires on 8th August 2018. 

2.4 Based on current data usage of 32 GB the air-time packages are as follows:-

WCCTV 
Product 

Description

Quantity Costs per 
device per 

year

Total Cost 
Exc. VAT

VAT Total Cost 
Ecl. VAT

2 Year 
32GB Tariff

2 £1,200.00 £4,800.00 £960.00 £5,760.00

3 Year 
32GB Tariff

2 £1,175.00 £7,050.00 £1,410.00 £8,460.00

4 Year 
32GB Tariff

2 £1,150.00 £9,200.00 £1,840.00 £11,040.00

5 Year 
32GB Tariff

2 £1,125.00 £11,250.00 £2,250.00 £13,500.00

2.5 Quite simply, without renewing the airtime agreement, the cameras will no 
longer be able to fulfil their purpose of live streaming back to the CBC control 
room.

2.6 In terms of Warranty, the following costs have been offered up:- 

WCCTV 
Product 

Description

Quantity Total Cost 
Exc. VAT

VAT Total Cost 
Inc. VAT

1 Year Mini 
Dome 

Warranty

2 £698.00 £139.60 £837.60

2 Year Mini 
Dome 

2 £1,358.00 £271.60 £1,629.60

Page 20



 
Warranty

3 Year Mini 
Dome 

Warranty

2 £1,948.00 £389.60 £2,337.60

4 Year Mini 
Dome 

Warranty

2 £2,548.00 £509.60 £3,057.60

5 Year Mini 
Dome 

Warranty

2 £3,078.00 £615.60 £3,693.60

2.7 To support entering into a warranty agreement, the suppliers make clear that 
those cameras that have a warranty will be offered a priority service in the event 
of going wrong. Also, the suppliers are confident that any repair will be carried 
out within 10 days of the fault being registered with them. According to the 
suppliers, a typical repair will cost in the region of £1,000. 

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 For the cameras to continue operating, the Town Council has no choice other 
than to pay for air time. In terms of the warranty, yes, an argument can be made 
that on financial grounds, the Town Council takes on the risk by not renewing. 
However, to the public, such an argument may not necessarily be well received 
if the cameras are found not to be working at the time of most need. Moreover, 
the annual £2,600 running costs (which have been identified for this very 
purpose) would make a significant and meaningful contribution towards 
meeting these costs.      

3.2 The future of cctv coverage within Central Bedfordshire is under review. For the 
parish, whatever decision is reached by the principal authority will have 
ramifications. For example, the analogue equipment that is presently operated 
will in due course become obsolete. Therefore, by way of the Town Council’s 5 
year financial plan, contingency will have to be made therein to renew 
equipment which is no longer fit for purpose.  Based on the fact that the principal 
authority is in the process of reviewing the future of cctv and the way it is 
monitored, a 2 year commitment is preferred at this stage.  

 End. 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



This data remains the property of Central Bedfordshire Council 
Page 1

Summary of recorded CCTV Incidents

Leighton Buzzard

1st April – 30th June 2018
This report contains data gathered by the Council’s CCTV Control Room located at Watling House, 
Dunstable. It includes details of CCTV monitored incidents and immediate arrests by the police in 
Leighton Buzzard. It does not include details of the police response to any particular incident where 
an arrest is not made, nor does it include incidents not captured by CCTV; for this reason the data will 
not reflect the overall picture of crime and disorder in any area. 

Date Time Location Type of Crime Arrests
07/04/2018 22:35 The Lancer Public Order 0
08/04/2018 12:45 Astral Park Other Theft 0
11/04/2018 15:24 High Street Street Drinkers 0
15/04/2018 01:42 The Lancer Public Order 0
19/04/2018 19:34 Parsons Rec Violent Offence 0
20/04/2018 03:37 Market Square Violent Offence 0
20/04/2018 17:50 Wilko's Shoplifting 0
22/04/2018 12:33 Peacocks Shoplifting 0
29/04/2018 02:58 The Lancer Public Order 0
03/05/2018 17:05 High Street Violent Offence 0
06/05/2018 01:20 The Lancer Public Order 0
12/05/2018 13:28 West Street Robbery 0
12/05/2018 22:00 The Picture House Public Order 0
14/05/2018 22:26 High Street Other Theft 0
18/05/2018 03:58 Wilko's Robbery 0
20/05/2018 03:18 High Street Violent Offence 2
29/05/2018 13:29 High Street Intel 0
03/06/2018 00:55 The Picture House Violent Offence 1
09/06/2018 01:40 Age UK Burglary 1
15/06/2018 14:55 Lake Street Drugs 0
15/06/2018 17:30 Multi-Storey Car Park Anti-Social Behaviour 0
16/06/2018 15:45 High Street Anti-Social Behaviour 0
16/06/2018 17:18 Waterbourne Walk Anti-Social Behaviour 0
17/06/2018 02:50 The Lancer Public Order 0

Page 23



This data remains the property of Central Bedfordshire Council 
Page 2

21/06/2018 19:23 Lake Street Anti-Social Behaviour 0
24/06/2018 02:20 The Lancer Violent Offence 0
24/06/2018 12:35 High Street Intel 0
25/06/2018 23:48 Duncombe Drive Other Theft 0
26/06/2018 17:33 Waterbourne Walk Anti-Social Behaviour 0
28/06/2018 21:16 Waterbourne Walk Public Order 0

There are currently 2 re-deployable cameras in Leighton Buzzard;

LLTC1 located on Vimy Road was installed in October 2016 due to problems with anti-social 
behaviour, minor criminal damage and dangerous driving in Tesco car park. 
LLTC2 located on Billington Road.

4 arrests were recorded as a result of CCTV monitoring of incidents in this quarter.

The CCTV control room continues to monitor problems with street drinkers in the Market Place in 
Leighton Buzzard in close liaison with the police.

CBC is progressing with its project to start the upgrade of public space CCTV in Central Bedfordshire.

Page 24


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 BEDFORDSHIRE POLICE
	Agreement between Chief Constable and LLTC

	8 CCTV & RE-DEPLOYABLE CAMERAS
	Leighton Buzzard April - June 2018


